
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, June 10, 2014

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor DeHart.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 15

Public Hearing - May 27, 2014
Regular Meeting - May 27, 2014

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 Bylaw No. 10964 (OCP13-0011) - 984 Dehart Road, Sherwood Mission
Developments Ltd.

16 - 19

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).

To give Bylaw No. 10964 second and third readings in order to change portions
of the Future Land Use Designation of the subject property from the Multi-Unit
Residential Low Density designation to the Single/Two Unit Residential
designation and from the Single/Two Unit Residential designation to the Multi-
Unit Residential Low Density designation.

4.2 Bylaw No. 10965 (Z13-0016) - 984 Dehart Road, Sherwood Mission
Developments Ltd.

20 - 21

To give Bylaw No. 10965 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject property from the A1 - Agriculture 1 zone to the RU1 - Large Lot
Housing zone.

4.3 Bylaw No. 10968 (OCP14-0006) - 560 & 582 McKay Avenue, 0781540 BC Ltd. 22 - 23

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).

To give Bylaw No. 10968 second and third readings in order to change the
future land use designation of the subject properties from the Multiple Unit
Res iden t ia l  (Med ium Dens i t y )  des igna t ion  to  the  M ixed  Use



(Residential/Commercial) designation.

4.4 Bylaw No. 10969 (Z14-0008) - 560 & 582 McKay Avenue, 0781540 BC Ltd. 24 - 25

To give Bylaw No. 10969 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject properties from the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone to the C4 - Urban
Centre Commercial zone.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

6. Liquor License Application Reports

6.1 Bylaw No. 10953 (Z14-0012) - 1370 Water Street, Kelowna Yacht Club 26 - 26

To adopt Bylaw No. 10953 in order to rezone the subject property from the P1 -
Major Institutional and P3 - Parks and Open Space zones to the P1lp - Major
Institutional (Liquor Primary) zone.

6.1.1 Liquor License Application No.  LL14-0002 - 1370 Water Street,
Kelowna Yacht Club

27 - 46

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received. 
Mayor to invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves
affected by the liquor license application to come forward.
To seek approval for the relocation of a Liquor Primary License for the
new Yacht Club facility.

7. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

7.1 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0086 - 987 Clement
Avenue, Okanagan Valley Construction

47 - 58

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
The purpose of the Development Variance Permit is to vary the allowable
dormer width from 1.2 metres to 2.6 metres.

8. Reminders

9. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



 
CITY OF KELOWNA 

 

BYLAW NO. 10964 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP13-0011 – 
Sherwood Mission Developments Ltd., Inc. No. BC0795928 

984 Dehart Road 
 
A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 – Official 

Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future 
Land Use designation of Lot 1, Section 31, Township 29, ODYD, Plan KAP62654, located 
on Dehart Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the  Multi-Unit Residential Low Density (MRL) 
designation to the Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES) designation, and a portion of 
Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES) be changed to Multi-Unit Residential Low Density 
(MRL) designation as per Map “A” attached to and forming part of this bylaw; 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 12th day of May, 2014.  
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 10th day of June, 2014. 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this  
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 

 
City Clerk

16



 
 
 

 

17



 

 

18



 
 

 

19



 

 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10965 
Z13-0016 – Sherwood Mission Developments Ltd., Inc. No. 

BC0795928  
984 Dehart Road 

 
 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of part of Lot 1, Section 31, Township 29, ODYD, Plan KAP62654 located 
on Dehart Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the A1 – Agriculture 1 zone to the RU1 – Large 
Lot Housing zone as per Map “B” attached to and forming part of this bylaw. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 12th day of May, 2014.  
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 10th day of June, 2014. 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

20



 

 

 

21



 
 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10968 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP14 – 0006 
0781540 B.C. Ltd 

560 & 582 McKay Avenue 
 
A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 – Official 

Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future 
Land Use designation of Lots 12 & 13, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3769, located on 
McKay Avenue, Kelowna, B.C., and the portion of McKay Avenue to be closed adjacent 
to Lots 12 and 13 from the  MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) 
designation to the MXR – Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) designation as per Map 
“A” attached to and forming part of this bylaw; 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 26th day of May, 2014. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 10th day of June, 2014. 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this  
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 

 
City Clerk

22



 
Map “A” 

 

23



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10969 
Z14-0008 – 0781540 BC Ltd  
560 & 582 McKay Avenue 

 
 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lots 12 & 13, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3769, located on McKay 
Avenue, Kelowna, B.C., and the portion of McKay Avenue to be closed adjacent to Lots 
12 and 13 located on McKay Avenue, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU6 – Two Dwelling 
Housing zone to the C4 – Urban Centre Commercial zone as per Map “B” attached to 
and forming part of this bylaw. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 26th day of May, 2014. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 10th day of June, 2014. 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



 
 

 

25



26



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: May 13,2014 

RIM No. 0930-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (PMc) 

Application: LL14-0002 Owner: 
Kelowna Yacht Club         
(Inc. No. S-0003099) 

Address: 1370 Water St. Applicant: Kelowna Yacht Club 

Subject: Liquor License Relocation Application  

Existing OCP Designation: Major Park/Open Space (public) 

Existing Zone: P1 – Major Institutional 

Proposed Zone: P1lp – Major Institutional(Liquor Primary) 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Zone Amending Bylaw 10953 be forwarded for adoption consideration, 

AND THAT in accordance with Section 53 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Regulation and 
Council Policy #359, be it resolved that: 

Council’s comments on the Liquor Control & Licensing Branch (LCLB)’s prescribed considerations 
for the application from at address: 1370 Water Street, Kelowna BC, (legally described as Lot 1, 
District Lot 139 & 4083, ODYD, Plan EPP29214) for a new Liquor Primary License, are as follows: 

a) The potential for noise if the application is approved: 

 A minimal increase in noise is expected compared to current circumstances. 

b) The impact on the community if the application is approved: 

 The potential for negative impacts are considered to be minimal. 

c) View of residents: 

 The Council’s comments on the views of residents (if applicable) are as contained within 
 the minutes of the meeting at which the application was considered by Council.  The 
 methods used to gather views of residents were as per Council Policy #359 “Liquor 
 Licensing Policy & Procedures.” 

d) The person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment: 

 The total person capacity proposed for liquor primary service is 474 seats (including 
 outdoor patio area) with serving hours of 9:00am to 2:00am, 7 days a week. 

27



LL4-0002 – Page 2 

 
 

e) Traffic and parking: 

 The parking requirements were addressed through the original Development Permit 
 application and associated Development Variance Permit application which reduced the 
 required off-street parking to 30 stalls.  Therefore, the onsite parking provided is 
 considered compliant.  

f) The proximity of the establishment to other social or recreational facilities and public 
buildings: 

 The relocation of the Yacht Club is approximately 60m. north of the existing location.  
 Surrounding facilities are not anticipated to conflict with the proposed new location. 

g) Recommendation: 
Council recommends that the application for a relocated liquor primary license for a total 
capacity of 474 patrons (including patio area) with the hours of 9:00 am to 2:00am, 7 days 
a week, for the property located at 1370 Water Street be approved. 

2.0 Purpose 

This application seeks Council’s support for the relocation of a Liquor Primary License for the 
new Yacht Club facility. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

Council Policy #359 specifies guidelines for the siting and density of Liquor Primary 
Establishments.  These parameters are designed to help control the density of late-night 
establishments with a focus on alcohol (nightclubs, pubs, etc.).  Given the location of existing of 
establishments in the area, the application generally complies with Policy #359.   

The proposed relocation of an existing license to a site that is within 100m of the current 
location will have minimal impact on the neighbourhood.  The new Yacht Club development will 
be located in a new modern facility.  This new facility will also add a food primary establishment 
to the ground floor, which will create greater opportunities to serve a larger range of patrons, as 
well as to diversify the selection of venues and entertainment opportunities throughout the 
Downtown. 

Given the above considerations, the Urban Planning Department is supportive of the proposed 
relocations of the Liquor Primary establishment for the Yacht Club. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The new yacht club building was authorized through Development Permit DP12-0008 for the form 
and character of the new building, and DVP12-0009 to address building setbacks, site coverage, 
parking stalls, and loading stalls.  The development permit and development variance permit 
were considered at a Public Council Meeting held on June 26, 2012.   The permits were issued 
April 30, 2013, and construction commenced in June 2013. 

4.2 Project Description 

To transfer a liquor license, the provincial Liquor Control Licensing Branch requires both public 
consultation and a Council resolution.  During staff review for the relocation application, it was 
discovered that owing to the size of the Liquor Primary license under consideration, this use 
would fall under the “Liquor Primary Establishment, major” definition, and that the property 

28



LL4-0002 – Page 3 

 
 

would have to be rezoned to add the “LP” designation on the existing P1 – major Institutional 
zone.  The rezoning application was considered by Council at the May 1th, 2014 Public Hearing. 

The Liquor License application to the Liquor Control and Licensing Branch is to relocate the 
liquor license from the old location of the Yacht Club to the new location currently under 
construction and is located approximately 60 metres north of the existing location. 

The proposed occupancy of 474 persons is considered a large liquor primary establishment.  
Council Policy 359 – Liquor Licensing Policy and Procedures requires this form of establishment to 
be located within an Urban Centre.  As the subject property is located within the Downtown 
Urban Centre, this condition is met. 

The rezoning to add the LP designation to the property and the associated liquor license 
application will not change the form and character of the development, nor change the use, as 
the development plans always indicated that there was to be a substantial licensed area within 
the building, as well as a public restaurant on the ground floor. 
 

 

Proposed License Summary: 

Proposed Hours of Sale: 

 Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

Open 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 9:00am 

Close 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 2:00am 

        

Licensed Area Capacity 

First Floor Boardroom 50 patrons 

Second Floor (limited by building design) 424 patrons 

Total Proposed Person Capacity  474 patrons* 

*The proposed capacity is based on preliminary floor plans, which are subject to approval by the Building & 
Permitting Branch and the LCLB. 

 

 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is currently under construction with the new 2 storey yacht Club building 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North P3 – Parks and Open Space boat launch 

East P1 – Major Institutional community theatre 

South P3 – Parks and Open Space parking lot 

West W2 – Intensive water use yacht club docks 

 

 
  

29



LL4-0002 – Page 4 

 
 

Subject Property Map:         1370 Water Street 
 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Council Policy #359 – Liquor Licensing Policy and Procedures 

The following sections of Policy #359 are applicable to this application: 

 Large establishments (with person capacity greater than 249 persons): 
o Should only be located within an Urban Centre. (Meets this criteria) 
o Should be located a minimum of 250m from another Large establishment. (not-

Satisfied – see comment below) 
o Should be located a minimum of 100m from a Medium establishment. (Satisfied) 
o Should not be located beside a Small establishment. (Satisfied) 

 Where appropriate, support alternative entertainment options, and/or establishments 
which are less focused on alcohol consumption (including event-driven establishments, 
and Food Primary establishments with the Patron Participation Entertainment 
Endorsement) to add a mix of entertainment options in Urban Centres. Consider limiting 
potential community impacts via license terms and conditions (hours, capacity, etc) 

It should be noted that this application deals with the relocation of an existing liquor primary 
establishment, that has been located on the current site since the 1960’s.  There are other 
establishments that are classified under the “Large Establishment” category which are located 
within the 250m separation to the existing Yacht Club facility.  The move of the facility to the 
subject property would not worsen this inconsistency with policy, as the new location is located 
within 60m of the existing facility.  

Parking for the Yacht Club will not change with the transfer of the Liquor License to the new 
location.  Off-Street Parking as required was addressed through the development review process 
for the issued development permit (DP12-0008 and DVP12-0009) for the resulting development. 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 
(new location Yacht Club) 

Current Location Yacht Club 

Rose’s Pub 

Kelowna Community Theatre 

Rotary Centre for the Arts 

Laurel Building Art Gallery 

Library 

R.C.M.P. Station 

Memorial Arena 

30



LL4-0002 – Page 5 

 
 

 

5.2 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

 Entertainment Venues.1 Within designated Urban Centres, encourage private-sector provision of 
facilities which diversify the selection of venues and entertainment opportunities throughout the 
city. 
Downtown.2  The City of Kelowna recognizes that a unique, attractive, thriving and livable 
downtown is strategically important to Kelowna’s overall prosperity and success. Towards this 
end, the City will plan and manage the Downtown as a single and special entity and will take a 
proactive, comprehensive, integrated and collaborative approach towards providing services and 
infrastructure, delivering programs, and developing a supportive regulatory and financial 
environment. 
 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No Comment 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Servicing was addressed through Development Permit application DP12-0008 

6.3 Bylaw Services 

No Comment 

6.4 Fire Department 

No Concerns 

6.5 Interior Health Authority 

Subject to Health permit approval in new location, will require food safety and sanitation 
 plan. 

6.6 R.C.M.P. 

The RCMP have no concerns regarding this application. 
 
 
 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: March 21, 2014  
 

 

                                                      
1
 Policy 5.17.1 (Development Process Chapter 5, page 5.21) 

2
 Policy 8.9.2 (Economic Development Chapter8, page 8.4 ) 

31



LL4-0002 – Page 6 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Paul McVey, Urban Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  D. Gilchrist, Div. Dir. Of Community Planning & Real Estate 

 

Attachments:  

Subject Property map 
Site Plan 
Rationale Letter 
Provisional Floor Plan (Occupant Load) 
LCLB application  
 

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 5/12/2014 

RIM No. 1940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: DVP14-0086 Owner: 
Okanagan Valey Construction 
Ltd., Inc. No. BC0665697 

Address: 987 Clement Ave Applicant: Balwinder Takhar 

Subject: Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DP14-0086, for Lot 24, 
Section 30, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 1271 located on 987 Clement Ave, Kelowna, BC. 

AND THAT the variance to the following section Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 6.6.4 – Height and Grade Regulations 

To vary the maximum permitted width of a dormer from 1.2m to 2.6m 

2.0 Purpose  

The purpose of the 2014 06 10 Report DVP14-0086 987 Clement Ave is to vary the allowable 
dormer width from 1.2 metres to 2.6 metres. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

The proposed variance is for the dormer width on a new carriage house. The subject property is 
zoned RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing which permits a carriage house. A Development Permit was 
issued on December 4th 2013 for the form and character and the applicant now wishes to expand 
the size of the dormer approved by the Development Permit.  
 
Staff are in the process of producing a zoning bylaw amendment to the dormer and carriage 
house regulations. The old dormer width / height rule restricted dormers to not more than 50% of 
the roof width. The proposed variance meets the old rule. Staff support this application however, 
there is concern with privacy regarding the dormer which faces east and directly adjacent to the 
neighbouring property. This was addressed by only proposing to increase the width of the dormer 

47



DVP14-0086 – Page 2 

 
 

but keeping the window size within the door to the same size which was approved in the original 
Development Permit. 
 
In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Applications, the applicant has provided notification of the proposed Development Variance 
Permit application to neighbouring properties within 50 metres of the subject site, and to date, 
City staff has not been contacted with any objections or concerns with the proposed variance.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the south side of Clement Avenue. The surrounding properties 
south of Clement Avenue are zoned RU6-Two Dwelling Housing. The properties to the north of 
the subject property and across Clement Ave are zoned for various industrial uses. The parcel 
directly to the north across Clement Avenue is zoned I-4 Central Industrial.  
 
4.2  Subject Property Map: 987 Clement Ave: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48



DVP14-0086 – Page 3 

 
 

5.0 Zoning Analysis Table  

The zoning analysis table is extracted from the 2014 06 10 Report DVP14-0086 987 
Clement Ave and shows the requirements of the zone compared to the proposal: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA PROPOSAL RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS 

Development Regulations 

Site Coverage (buildings) 38.6% 40% 

Site Coverage 

(buildings/parking) 
47% 50% 

New Principal Dwelling 

Height  2 storeys / 8.78 m 2½ storeys / 9.5 m 

Front Yard 4.5 m 4.5 m 

Side Yard (west) 2.3 2.3 m (2 - 2½ storey) 

Side Yard (east) 2.57  2.3 m (2 - 2½ storey) 

Rear Yard Approx. 19.61 m 7.5 m   

Proposed Carriage House 

Height  4.48 m 4.5 m 

Front Yard n/a 4.5 m 

Side Yard (west) 2.30 m 2.0 m (1-1½ storey) 

Side Yard (east) 2.53 m 2.0 m (1-1½ storey) 

Rear Yard 1.96 m 1.5 m 

Building Separation 7.29 m 4.5 m 

Other Requirements 

Floor Area Ratios 

Principal Dwelling:  181.6 m2  

Carriage House: 79 m2 

43.5%  

Lesser of 75% of principal 

dwelling or 90 m2 

Accessory building foot print   14% 14%  

Parking Stalls (#) 3 spaces 3 spaces 

Private Open Space 
Meets requirements  

[37.2 m2 per dwelling unit] 
30 m2 per dwelling unit 

6.0 Technical Comments   

Building & Permitting 

 No concerns 

Development Engineering 

 See attached 

 

49



DVP14-0086 – Page 4 

 
 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:      May 8, 2014 
Date of Neighbourhood Consultation Received (re: variance):  May 15, 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Supervisor - Urban Planning  
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Manager - Urban Planning 
 

Attachments:   

Application package 

Development Engineering Memo 
 

50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58


	Agenda
	3. Draft Minutes - May 27, 2014 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Draft Minutes - May 27, 2014 Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 BL10964 - OCP13-0011 - 984 Dehart Road.pdf
	4.2 BL10965 - Z13-0016 - Sherwood Mission Development - 984 Dehart Road.pdf
	4.3 BL10968 - OCP14-0006 - 560 and 582 McKay Ave - 0781540 BC ltd.pdf
	4.4 BL10969 - Z14-0008 - 0781540 BC Ltd - 560 and 582 McKay Ave.pdf
	6.1 Bylaw No. 10953 (Z14-0012).pdf
	6.1.1 2014 06 10 Report LL14-0002 1370 Water St .docx
	6.1.1 2014 06 10 Attachment LL14-0002 1370 Water St.pdf
	7.1 2014 06 10 Report DVP14-0086 987 Clement Ave.docx
	7.1 2014 06 10 Attachments DVP14-0086 987 Clement.pdf

